
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 12, 2017 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of August 8, 2017 meeting and August 23, 2017 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending August 31, 2017   

8. Communications and Petitions: 

1. Claim filed by Rachel Stiver for vehicle damages she sustained as a result of 
driving into and/or over a pothole on State Street (near Tannery Road) on 
May 21, 2017. The City's insurance carrier is recommending that this claim be 
disallowed. This recommendation is based on the fact that an investigation 
proved that the City was not negligent or liable for this incident, as the City 
had no prior knowledge that the pothole in question existed. A municipality 
has no liability unless it knew, or should have known, of the existance of the 
condition and had a reasonable time to repair the condition.   

2. Petition for Direct Annexation from Max Peterson and Grant Peterson, for 
property they own in the Town of Merrill, lying contiguous to the City of Merrill.  
This petition should be referred to both the Board of Public Works and the 
City Plan Commission.  

9. General agenda items: 

1. Employee Years of Service Recognition:   

 Thomas N. Hayden, 15 years (City Attorney)   

10. Board of Public Works: 

1. Street Use Permit application from The Haunted Sawmill to close Hendricks 
Street (from 7th to 8th Street) from 5:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. on October 13th, 
14th, 20th, 21st, 27th, 28th, and 31st, 2017, for a Haunted House Event  The 
Board of Public Works recommends approval.  

2. Consider bids submitted for the 2017 Paving Project II, M2017-15.  Mayor 
Bialecki is bringing the bids directly to the Common Council. A bid summary 
will be provided at the meeting.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday September 12, 2017 

3. Consider bids submitted for the 2017 Asphaltic Paving, River Bend Trail, 
M2017-16.  Mayor Bialecki is bringing the bids directly to the Common 
Council. A bid summary will be provided at the meeting.  

11. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Application from Merrill Hotel Group LLC, Brian Wogernese, Agent, for a 
Class "B" (Beer) & "Class B" (Liquor) license for the Badger Hotel, 3209 E. 
Main Street, Merrill, effective September 13th, 2017.  The Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approval.  

2. Request from Don Boquist for refund of 2017-2018 liquor license fee for the 
Badger Hotel located at 3209 E. Main Street.  The Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approving a prorated refund ($450), based on the 
number of months Mr. Boquist possessed the license. The Health and Safety 
Committee also recommends that the refund be contingent upon the approval 
of a license for the Merrill Hotel Group, at the same location.   

3. Consider application from St. Francis Xavier Catholic Church, 1708 East 
Tenth Street, for a temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt 
beverages and wine at 1708 East Tenth Street (inside and on grounds) on 
Sunday, October 8, 2017, as part of a fall festival.  Alderman Russell is 
bringing this application directly to the Common Council.  

12. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. 2018-2020 assessment maintenance contract with Bowmar Appraisal.  The 
Personnel and Finance Committee recommends approval.  

2. Consider Preliminary Borrowing Plan for Tax Increment Districts (TIDs) No. 3 
and No 4.  Mayor Bialecki is brining this plan directly to the Common Council.  

13. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Board of Public 
Works, City Plan Commission, Committee of the Whole/Redevelopment 
Authority/Community Development, Festival Grounds Committee, Health and 
Safety Committee, Joint Review Board, Library Board, Merrill Area Housing 
Authority, Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, Parks and Recreation 
Commission, Personnel and Finance Committee and Redevelopment 
Authority.   

14. Mayor's Appointments: 

 Sheila Polak to the Redevelopment Authority, term to expire September 1, 
2022.   

 Joan Tabor, to the Parks and Recreation Commission, term to expire May 1, 
2022.   

 Lyle Banser to the Airport Commission, term to expire October 1, 2023.   

 Nicole Johnson to the Police and Fire Commission, term to expire May 1, 
2021.   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday September 12, 2017 

15. Ordinances:  

 None.   

16. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution approving Merrill Area Housing Authority request to continue 
and adjust Payment in Lieu of Taxes and support of renovation program.  
This resolution has been on previous Common Council meeting agendas, but, 
due to quorum-related issues, consideration has been delayed.   

2. A Resolution approving a Certified Survey Map on Highway County Road "G" 
and US Highway "51" in the Town of Merrill by G&M Peterson LLC and the 
City.  The City Plan Commission recommends approval.  

3. A Resolution authorizing City purchase of vacant land fronting on Lincoln 
County Highway "G", from G&M Peterson, LLC, for future Industrial/Business 
Park.  The Redevelopment Authority and the Committee of the Whole 
recommend approval.  

4. An Initial Resolution authorizing $310,000 General Obligation Bonds for street 
improvement projects.   

5. An Initial Resolution authorizing $1.030,000 General Obligation Bonds for Fire 
Department equipment.   

6. An Initial Resolution authorizing $1,275,000 General Obligation Bonds for 
Community Development projects in Tax Incremental District Nos. 7,8,9 and 
11.   

7. An Initial Resolution authorizing $615,000 General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds.   

8. A Resolution directing publication of notice to electors.   

9. A Resolution providing for the sale of not to exceed $3,230,000 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds.   

10. A Resolution providing for the sale of $860,000 General Obligation 
Promissory Notes.   

17. Mayor's Communications 

18. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

MINUTES ● WEDNESDAY AUGUST 23, 2017 

 Special Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 4:30 PM 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Bialecki called the meeting to order at 4:30 P.M.  
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Paul Russell Alderperson - First District Present  

Pete Lokemoen Alderperson - Second District Present  

Ryan Schwartzman Alderperson - Third District Present  

Kandy Peterson Alderperson - Fourth District Excused  

John Burgener Alderperson - Fifth District & President Present  

Mary Ball Alderperson - Sixth District Present  

Rob Norton Alderperson - Seventh District Present  

Tim Meehean Alderperson - Eighth District Excused  

Bill Bialecki Mayor Present  

 

Also in attendance: Public Works Director/City Engineer Rod Akey, Street 
Superintendent Dustin Bonack, City Attorney Tom Hayden, City Administrator Dave 
Johnson, Building Inspector/Zoning Administrator Darin Pagel, Finance Director Kathy 
Unertl and City Clerk Bill Heideman.  

 

II. Public Comment Period 

None.  

III. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution approving Merrill Area Housing Authority request to continue 
and adjust Payment in Lieu of Taxes and support of renovation program.   

WHEREAS, there exists a program entitled Section 42 Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits which is administered in the State of Wisconsin by the Wisconsin Housing and 
Economic Development Authority (“WHEDA”) whose purpose is to provide development 
of rental units for low income households, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Merrill Area Housing Authority is renovating and redeveloping 

102 units of affordable housing currently known as Park Place Apartments and Westgate 
Apartments in connection with an allocation of Section 42 Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits it has received from WHEDA and has requested the City of Merrill to support the 
renovation and redevelopment of Park Place Apartments and Westgate Apartments, and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council finds that the redevelopment of affordable rental 

housing within the City will be beneficial to the City of Merrill and its residents, and 
 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

WHEREAS, in connection with WHEDA’s allocation of tax credits and the 
redevelopment, Merrill Area Housing Authority will transfer federal income tax ownership 
of Park Place Apartments and Westgate Apartments to the entity formed to receive the 
tax credits from WHEDA, Park Place & Westgate, LLC (the “LLC”), by leasing the land, 
buildings and other improvements constituting the apartment projects to the LLC 
pursuant to a capital lease, and 

 
WHEREAS Merrill Area Housing Authority is the sole member of the managing 

member of the LLC and the property manager of the apartment projects, with the 
exception of compliance associated with the Section 42 Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits, and as such, notwithstanding the transfers of ownership of the improvements to 
the LLC as described above, continues to exercise exclusive control and authority over 
the operation of the apartment projects, and 

 
WHEREAS upon completion of the redevelopment, the project will consist of 54 

units of affordable housing known as Park Place Apartments, 38 units of affordable 
housing known as Stonebridge Apartments and 10 units of affordable housing known as 
Westgate Apartments, and 

 
WHEREAS, the current payment in lieu of taxes for Park Place Apartments 

PILOT is now shelter rent less utilities x 10% will remain the same, and 
 

WHEREAS, the payment in lieu of taxes for Westgate Apartments PILOT is now 
shelter rent less utilities x 10% and will remain the same, and 

 
WHEREAS, the payment in lieu of taxes for Stonebridge Apartments PILOT is 

proposed to be shelter rent less utilities x 10%.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COMMON COUNCIL, OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL this 8th day of August, 2017, that it supports the Merrill Area 
Housing Authority’s allocation of tax credits and hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute 
all documents necessary to accomplish those purposes, including the PILOT Agreement 
in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 
Note: Exhibit A is available for public inspection in the Clerk/Treasurer office at City Hall. 
 
Mayor Bialecki requested that this resolution be referred to a special Common Council 
meeting. That meeting will be held in the City Hall Common Council Chambers on 
Tuesday, August 29th, 2017, and will begin at 6:00 P.M. Without objection, it was so 
ordered.  

2. A Resolution approving the Project Plan and establishing the boundaries for 
the creation of Tax Increment District No. 12, City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
(Resolution #2521).   

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill (the “City”) has determined that use of Tax 
Incremental Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 12 (the “District”) is proposed to be 
created by the City as a mixed-use district in accordance with the provisions of 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105 (the "Tax Increment Law"); and 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

 
 WHEREAS, a Project Plan for the District has been prepared that includes: 

 
a. A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works or 

improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin Statutes 
Sections 66.1105(2)(f)1.k. and 66.1105(2)(f)1.n., outside of the District; 

b. An economic feasibility study; 
c. A detailed list of estimated project costs; 
d. A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time when 

the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred; 
e. A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District; 
f. A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District; 
g. Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and City 

ordinances;  
h. A list of estimated non-project costs; 
i. A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced; 
j. A statement indicating how the District promotes the orderly development of the City; 
k. An opinion of the City Attorney or of an attorney retained by the City advising that the 

plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f). 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was 
sent to the chief executive officers of Lincoln County, the Merrill Area School District, 
and the Northcentral Technical College District, and any other entities having the power 
to levy taxes on property located within the District, in accordance with the procedures 
specified in the Tax Increment Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment 
Law, the Redevelopment Authority, on August 8, 2017 held a public hearing concerning 
the project plan and boundaries and proposed creation of the District, providing 
interested parties a reasonable opportunity to express their views thereon; and 

 
 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Redevelopment Authority designated 
the boundaries of the District, adopted the Project Plan, and recommended to the 
Common Council that it create such District and approve the Project Plan and 
  
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 23rd day of August, 2017, that: 
 

1. The boundaries of the District that shall be named "Tax Incremental District No. 12, City 
of Merrill", are hereby established as specified in Exhibit A of this Resolution. 

 
2. The District is created effective as of January 1, 2017. 

 

3. The Common Council finds and declares that: 
 

(a) Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District is suitable for a 
combination of industrial, commercial and residential uses, defined as “mixed-use 
development” within the meaning of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(2)(cm).   
 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

(b) Based upon the findings, as stated in 3.a. above, the District is declared to be a mixed-
use district based on the identification and classification of the property included within 
the District.  

 
(c) The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value of substantially 

all of the other real property in the District. 
 

(d) The equalized value of the taxable property in the District plus the value increment of all 
other existing tax incremental districts within the City, does not exceed 12% of the total 
equalized value of taxable property within the City. 

 

(e) The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District will be devoted to 
retail business at the end of the District’s maximum expenditure period, pursuant to 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).   
 

(f) The project costs relate directly to promoting mixed-use development in the District 
consistent with the purpose for which the District is created. 
 

(f) Lands proposed for newly platted residential development comprise no more than 35% 
of the real property area within the District. 
 

(g) Costs related to newly platted residential development may be incurred based on the 
proposed development having a density of at least 3 units per acre as defined in 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(2)(f)3.a.  
 

4. The Project Plan for "Tax Incremental District No. 12, City of Merrill" (attached as Exhibit 
B) is approved, and the City further finds the Plan is feasible and in conformity with the 
master plan of the City. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and 
directed to apply to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, in such form as may be 
prescribed, for a "Determination of Tax Incremental Base", as of January 1, 2017, 
pursuant to the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b). 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) of the 
Wisconsin Statutes that the City Assessor is hereby authorized and directed to identify 
upon the assessment roll returned and examined under Wisconsin Statutes Section 
70.45, those parcels of property which are within the District, specifying thereon the 
name of the said District, and the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make 
similar notations on the tax roll made under Section 70.65 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Motion (Schwartzman/Burgener) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

3. A Resolution approving an amendment to the Project Plan and Boundaries of 
Tax Increment District #8, City of Merrill, Wisconsin (Resolution #2522).   

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill (the “City”) has determined that use of Tax 
Incremental Financing is required to promote development and redevelopment within the 
City; and 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

 
WHEREAS, Tax Incremental District No. 8 (the “District”) was created by the City 

on September 27, 2011 as a blighted area district; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City now desires to amend the Project Plan and boundaries of 
the District in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105 (the 
"Tax Increment Law"); and 

 
 WHEREAS, such amendment will cause territory to be subtracted from the 
District, adding to the tax base of the City and all overlapping taxing jurisdictions; and  
  
 WHEREAS, such amendment will also modify the categories, locations or costs 
of the Projects to be undertaken, providing incentives and opportunities for additional 
private development and redevelopment; and 

 
 WHEREAS, such amendment will also allow for the District to incur project costs 
outside of, but within ½ mile of, the boundaries of the District as permitted under 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(2)(f)1.n.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an amended Project Plan for the District (the “Amendment”) has 
been prepared that includes: 
 

a. A statement listing of the kind, number and location of all proposed public works or 
improvements within the District, or to the extent provided in Wisconsin Statutes 
Sections 66.1105(2)(f)1.k. and 66.1105(2)(f)1.n., outside of the District; 

b. An economic feasibility study; 
c. A detailed list of estimated project costs; 
d. A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the time when 

the related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred; 
e. A map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the District; 
f. A map showing proposed improvements and uses in the District; 
g. Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, master plan, map, building codes and City 

ordinances;  
h. A list of estimated non-project costs; 
i. A statement of the proposed plan for relocation of any persons to be displaced; 
j. A statement indicating how the amendment of the District promotes the orderly 

development of the City; 
k. An opinion of the City Attorney or of an attorney retained by the City advising that the 

plan is complete and complies with Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(4)(f). 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to its publication, a copy of the notice of public hearing was 
sent to owners of all property in the proposed district, to the chief executive officers of 
Lincoln County, the Merrill Area School District, and the Northcentral Technical College 
District, and any other entities having the power to levy taxes on property located within 
the District, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment Law; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment 

Law, the Redevelopment Authority, on August 8, 2017 held a public hearing concerning 
the proposed amendment to the Project Plan and boundaries of the District, providing 
interested parties a reasonable opportunity to express their views thereon; and 
 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Redevelopment Authority designated 
the boundaries of the amended district, adopted the Project Plan, and recommended to 
the Common Council that it amend the Project Plan and boundaries for the District. 

 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedures specified in the Tax Increment 
Law, before the Common Council may amend any tax incremental district, the 
Redevelopment Authority must designate the boundaries of such amended District and 
approve the Project Plan amendment for such District and submit its recommendation 
concerning the amendment of the District and the Project Plan to the Common Council; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 23rd day of August, 2017, that: 
  

1. The boundaries of the District that shall be named "Tax Incremental District No. 8, City of 
Merrill", are hereby amended as specified in Exhibit A of this Resolution. 

 
2. The territory being subtracted from the District shall no longer be part of the District 

effective as of January 1, 2017. 

 

3. The Common Council finds and declares that: 
 
(a) Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District, as amended, is a 

blighted area within the meaning of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(2)(a)1. 
 

(b) Based upon the findings, as stated in 3.a. above, and the original findings as stated in 
the resolution creating the District, the District remains a blighted area district based on 
the identification and classification of the property included within the District; and 

 
(c) The improvement of such area is likely to enhance significantly the value of substantially 

all of the other real property in the District.      
 

(e) The City estimates that less than 35% of the territory within the District, as amended, will 
be devoted to retail business at the end of the District’s maximum expenditure period, 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b).    

 
(f) The project costs of the District relate directly to promoting the elimination of blight of the 

area consistent with the purpose for which the District was created.    
 

4. The amended Project Plan for "Tax Incremental District No. 8, City of Merrill" (attached 
as Exhibit B) is approved, and the City further finds the Plan is feasible and in conformity 
with the master plan of the City. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and 
directed to apply to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, in such form as may be 
prescribed, for a "Determination of Tax Incremental Base", as of January 1, 2017, 
pursuant to the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105(5)(b) and to pay the 
fee(s) associated with such determination. 
 

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



Minutes Common Council Wednesday August 23, 2017 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Wednesday August 23, 2017 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(f) of the 
Wisconsin Statutes, that the City Assessor is hereby authorized and directed to identify 
upon the assessment roll returned and examined under Wisconsin Statutes Section 
70.45, those parcels of property which are within the District, specifying thereon the 
name of the said District, and the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make 
similar notations on the tax roll made under Wisconsin Statutes Section 70.65e, 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Motion (Schwartzman/Norton) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

IV. Adjournment 

Motion (Burgener/Schwartzman) to adjourn. Carried. Adjourned at 4:46 P.M.  

6.1.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7-

08
-2

3 
S

p
ec

ia
l C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

27
46

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

A
u

g
u

st
 8

, 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
3,

 2
01

7 
m

ee
ti

n
g

)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 A

u
g

u
st

 3
1,

 2
01

7)



8.1.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

et
te

r 
o

f 
S

ti
ve

r 
C

la
im

 D
is

al
lo

w
an

ce
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 f

ro
m

 in
su

ra
n

ce
  (

26
97

 :
 S

ti
ve

r 
cl

ai
m

)



8.1.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

et
te

r 
o

f 
S

ti
ve

r 
C

la
im

 D
is

al
lo

w
an

ce
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 f

ro
m

 in
su

ra
n

ce
  (

26
97

 :
 S

ti
ve

r 
cl

ai
m

)



8.2.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
D

ir
ec

t 
A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 -
 T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll 
(P

et
er

so
n

 P
ro

p
er

ty
) 

 (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



8.2.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
D

ir
ec

t 
A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 -
 T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll 
(P

et
er

so
n

 P
ro

p
er

ty
) 

 (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



8.2.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
D

ir
ec

t 
A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 -
 T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll 
(P

et
er

so
n

 P
ro

p
er

ty
) 

 (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



8.2.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
D

ir
ec

t 
A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 -
 T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll 
(P

et
er

so
n

 P
ro

p
er

ty
) 

 (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



8.2.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

-L
C

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 G

  (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



8.2.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

-L
C

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 G

  (
27

59
 :

 P
et

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

D
ir

ec
t 

A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

tr
ee

t 
U

se
 P

er
m

it
 -

 H
au

n
te

d
 S

aw
m

ill
  (

27
23

 :
 S

tr
ee

t 
U

se
 P

er
m

it
 -

 T
h

e 
H

au
n

te
d

 S
aw

m
ill

)



10.2.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

E
n

g
in

ee
r 

re
q

u
es

t 
fo

r 
ag

en
d

a 
it

em
s 

- 
2 

b
id

s 
 (

27
61

 :
 B

id
 f

o
r 

20
17

 P
av

in
g

 P
ro

je
ct

 II
)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

 -
 B

ad
g

er
 H

o
te

l  
(2

73
0 

: 
M

er
ri

ll 
H

o
te

l G
ro

u
p

 -
 C

la
ss

 B
 B

ee
r 

&
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

)



11.2.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eq
u

es
t 

b
y 

D
o

n
 B

o
q

u
is

t 
- 

L
ic

en
se

 R
ef

u
n

d
  (

27
31

 :
 R

eq
u

es
t 

fr
o

m
 D

o
n

 B
o

q
u

is
t 

fo
r 

liq
u

o
r 

lic
en

se
 r

ef
u

n
d

)



11.3.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

t 
F

ra
n

ci
s 

P
ic

n
ic

 L
ic

en
se

 O
ct

 8
 2

01
7 

 (
27

47
 :

 P
ic

n
ic

 li
ce

n
se

 f
o

r 
S

t.
 F

ra
n

ci
s 

F
al

l F
es

ti
va

l)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t-
20

18
-2

02
0 

 (
27

32
 :

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12.2.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
 R

ev
en

u
e 

N
o

te
s-

T
ID

3 
an

d
 T

ID
4 

 (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
 

 
September 12, 2017 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
 
$3,230,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, Series 2017A 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
 
Brian Reilly, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
 
And 
 
Sean Lentz, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
 
And 
 
Chris Hetland, 
Financial Specialist 

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $3,230,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A 

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing for the following purposes:  

Finance Street Improvements, Park Improvements, Library Improvements, TID 
Improvements (7,8,9,11), & Refunding of 2008B 

 Streets and Fire Truck. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 Current Refunding of Series 2008B - General Fund and TID 4. Debt 
service will be paid from tax levy and TID 4. 

Interest rates on the obligations proposed to be refunded are 1.3% to 
2.55%. The refunding is expected to reduce interest expense by 
approximately $53,748 over the next 10 years.  The Net Present Value 
Benefit of the refunding is estimated to be $52,745, equal to 8.57% of the 
refunded principal. 

This refunding is considered to be a Current Refunding as the obligations 
being refunded are either callable (pre-payable) now, or will be within 90 
days of the date of issue of the new Bonds. 

 TID No. 7 capital expenses. Debt service will be paid from tax increment 
revenues. 

 TID No. 8 capital expenses. Debt service will be paid from tax increment 
revenues. 

 TID No. 9 capital expenses. Debt service will be paid from tax increment 
revenues. 

 TID No. 11 capital expenses. Debt service will be paid from tax 
increment revenues. 

Authority:  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statute(s): 

 67.04 

The Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which its full faith, credit and 
taxing powers are pledged. 

The Bonds count against the City’s General Obligation Debt Capacity Limit of 5% of 
total City Equalized Valuation.  Following issuance of the Bonds, the City’s total 
General Obligation debt principal outstanding will be $15,908,243, which is 79% of 
its limit.  Remaining General Obligation Borrowing Capacity will be approximately 
$4,209,567. 

Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for a 20-year term.  Principal on the Bonds will be due 
on October 1 in the years 2018 through 2037. Interest is payable every six months 
beginning October 1, 2018. 

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 2 

 

The Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2027 will be subject to prepayment at 
the discretion of the City on October 1, 2026 or any date thereafter. 

Bank Qualification: Because the City is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax exempt debt 
during the calendar year, the City will be able to designate the Bonds as “bank 
qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the market for the Bonds, 
which can result in lower interest rates. 

Rating: The City’s most recent bond issues were rated “A” by Standard & Poor’s.  The City 
will request a new rating for the Bonds. 

If the winning bidder on the Bonds elects to purchase bond insurance, the rating for 
the issue may be higher than the City’s bond rating in the event that the bond rating 
of the insurer is higher than that of the City. 

Basis for 
Recommendation: 

 Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, our 
advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal financing 
options, we are recommending the issuance of Bonds as a suitable option based on: 

 The expectation this form of financing will provide the overall lowest cost 
of funds while also meeting the City’s objectives for term, structure and 
optional redemption. 

 The City having adequate General Obligation debt capacity to undertake 
this financing.  

 The nature of the projects being financed. 

 The existing General Obligation pledge securing the obligations to be 
refunded. 

Method of 
Sale/Placement: 

In order to obtain the lowest interest cost to the City, we will competitively bid the 
purchase of the Bonds from local and national underwriters/banks. 
 
We have included an allowance for discount bidding equal to 1.20% of the principal 
amount of the issue. The discount is treated as an interest item and provides the 
underwriter with all or a portion of their compensation in the transaction.  
 
If the Bonds are purchased at a price greater than the minimum bid amount (maximum 
discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower your borrowing amount. 
 
Premium Bids:  Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal bonds 
prefer “premium” pricing structures.  A premium is achieved when the coupon for 
any maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, 
resulting in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum of 
the amounts paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.”  
 

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 3 

 

The amount of the premium varies, but it is not uncommon to see premiums for new 
issues in the range of 2.00% to 10.00% of the face amount of the issue.  This means 
that an issuer with a $2,000,000 offering may receive bids that result in proceeds of 
$2,040,000 to $2,200,000. 
 
For this issue of Bonds we have been directed to use the premium to reduce the size 
of the issue. The adjustments may slightly change the true interest cost of the original 
bid, either up or down. 
 
You have the choice to limit the amount of premium in the bid specifications.  This 
may result in fewer bids, but it may also eliminate large adjustments on the day of 
sale and other uncertainties. 
 
The amount of premium allowed can be restricted in the bid 
specifications.  Restrictions on premium may result in fewer bids, but may also 
eliminate large adjustments on the day of sale and unintended results with respect to 
debt service payment impacts.  Ehlers will identify appropriate premium restrictions 
for the Bonds intended to achieve the City’s objectives for this financing. 
 

Other Considerations: The Bonds will be offered with the option of the successful bidder utilizing a term 
bond structure.  By offering underwriters the option to “term up” some of the 
maturities at the time of the sale, it gives them more flexibility in finding a market for 
your Bonds.   This makes your issue more marketable, which can result in lower 
borrowing costs.  In the event that the successful bidder utilizes a term bond structure, 
we recommend the City retain a paying agent to handle responsibility for processing 
mandatory redemption/call notices associated with term bonds. 

Review of Existing 
Debt: 

We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the City and find that, other than 
the obligations proposed to be refunded by the Bonds, there are no other refunding 
opportunities at this time. 

We will continue to monitor the market and the call dates for the City’s outstanding 
debt and will alert you to any future refunding opportunities. 

Continuing 
Disclosure: 

Because the City has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this issue) 
and this issue is over $1,000,000, the City will be agreeing to provide certain updated 
Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statement annually as well 
as providing notices of the occurrence of certain reportable events to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), as required by rules of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC). The City is already obligated to provide such 
reports for its existing bonds, and has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the 
reports.   

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 4 

 

Arbitrage Monitoring: 
 
 

Because the Bonds are tax-exempt obligations/tax credit obligations, the City must 
ensure compliance with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the 
life of the issue.  These rules apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial 
bond proceeds and investment earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, and any 
reserve funds.  How issuers spend bond proceeds and how they track interest earnings 
on funds (arbitrage/yield restriction compliance) are common subjects of IRS 
inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be detailed in the Tax Exemption 
Certificate prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing.  We recommend 
that you regularly monitor compliance with these rules and/or retain the services of a 
qualified firm to assist you. We also recommend that you establish written procedures 
regarding compliance with IRS rules. 

Risk Factors: Current Refunding: The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of current refunding 
prior City debt obligations. Those prior debt obligations are “callable” now and can 
therefore be paid off within 90 days or less. The new Bonds will not be pre-payable 
until October 1, 2024.  

This refunding is being undertaken based in part on an assumption that the City does 
not expect to have future revenues to pay off this debt and that market conditions 
warrant the refinancing at this time. 

Other Service 
Providers: 

This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 
coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used a 
particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue that 
relationship.  For services you have not previously required, we have identified a 
service provider.  Fees charged by these service providers will be paid from proceeds 
of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay them from other 
sources.  Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a good faith estimate of these fees, so their 
final fees may vary.  If you have any questions pertaining to the identified service 
providers or their role, or if you would like to use a different service provider for any 
of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services Corporation 

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's Global Ratings (S&P)  

 
This presale report summarizes our understanding of the City’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 
financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need 
to modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the City’s objectives. 
  

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 5 

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Common Council: September 12, 2017 

Distribute Official Statement: Week of September 25, 2017 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of October 2, 2017 

Common Council Meeting to Award Sale of the Bonds: October 10, 2017 

Estimated Closing Date: October 26, 2017  

Redemption Date for Bond December 1, 2017  

 

Attachments 
Sources and Uses of Funds and Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

Refunding Savings Analysis 
 
 

Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: Brian Reilly (651) 697-8541 

 Sean Lentz (651) 697-8509 

 Chris Hetland (651) 697-8582 

Disclosure Coordinator: Charissa Brookley (651) 697-8573 

Financial Analyst: Beth Mueller (651) 697-8553 
 
 
The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed to the Common Council at their home address or e-mailed 
for review prior to the sale date. 

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



Exhibit 1 Preliminary - For Discussion Only

City of Merrill, WI

Estimated Debt Service and Capitalization Schedule

$3,230,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017B Debt
Levy TID 4

Debt Fire Refund Refund
Year Principal Rate Interest Total P&I Levy Truck TID 7 TID 8 TID 9 TID 11 2008B 2008B
2017
2018 175,000         1.30% 74,954 249,954         22,558           70,132           9,434             8,557             22,558           40,819           45,953           29,941           
2019 170,000         1.40% 78,273 248,273         17,928           66,423           9,700             8,758             17,928           41,675           55,878           29,985           
2020 160,000         1.60% 75,893 235,893         17,788           70,863           9,630             8,688             17,788           41,325           40,178           29,635           
2021 190,000         1.70% 73,333 263,333         22,628           70,143           9,550             8,608             22,628           40,925           59,618           29,235           
2022 170,000         1.90% 70,103 240,103         22,373           69,378           14,465           8,523             22,373           45,500           28,683           28,810           
2023 170,000         2.00% 66,873 236,873         22,088           68,523           14,275           8,428             22,088           44,930           28,208           28,335           
2024 180,000         2.15% 63,473 243,473         21,788           67,623           14,075           8,328             21,788           44,330           32,708           32,835           
2025 180,000         2.30% 59,603 239,603         21,465           66,655           13,860           8,220             21,465           43,685           32,063           32,190           
2026 185,000         2.45% 55,463 240,463         21,120           70,620           13,630           8,105             21,120           42,995           31,373           31,500           
2027 180,000         2.55% 50,930 230,930         20,753           69,395           13,385           7,983             20,753           42,260           25,638           30,765           
2028 125,000         2.70% 46,340 171,340         20,370           68,120           13,130           7,855             20,370           41,495           -                 -                 
2029 130,000         2.80% 42,965 172,965         19,965           66,770           12,860           7,720             19,965           45,685           -                 -                 
2030 140,000         2.90% 39,325 179,325         19,545           70,370           12,580           12,580           19,545           44,705           -                 -                 
2031 140,000         3.00% 35,265 175,265         19,110           68,775           12,290           12,290           19,110           43,690           -                 -                 
2032 140,000         3.15% 31,065 171,065         18,660           67,125           11,990           11,990           18,660           42,640           -                 -                 
2033 145,000         3.25% 26,655 171,655         18,188           70,393           11,675           11,675           18,188           41,538           -                 -                 
2034 160,000         3.30% 21,943 181,943         22,700           68,443           11,350           11,350           22,700           45,400           -                 -                 
2035 160,000         3.35% 16,663 176,663         22,040           66,463           11,020           11,020           22,040           44,080           -                 -                 
2036 165,000         3.40% 11,303 176,303         21,370           69,453           10,685           10,685           21,370           42,740           -                 -                 
2037 165,000         3.45% 5,693 170,693         20,690           67,243           10,345           10,345           20,690           41,380           -                 -                 

Totals 3,230,000      946,109         4,176,109      413,123         1,372,904      239,929         191,705         413,123         861,797         380,296         303,231         

Dated Date: 10/26/2017
First Interest Payment: 10/1/2018
First Principal Payment: 10/1/2018

PreSale
True Interest Cost (TIC): 2.99%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC): 3.18%

Debt
Sources and Uses Levy TID 4

Debt Fire Refund Refund
Total Levy Truck TID 7 TID 8 TID 9 TID 11 2008A 2008A

Par Amount of Bonds 3,230,000      310,000         1,030,000      180,000         140,000         310,000         645,000         345,000         270,000         

Total Sources $3,230,000 $310,000 $1,030,000 $180,000 $140,000 $310,000 $645,000 $345,000 $270,000

Underwriters Discount 45,660           3,720             12,360           2,160             1,680             3,720             7,740             4,140             3,240             
Cost of Issuance 57,000           4,799             15,944           2,786             2,167             4,799             9,985             5,341             4,180             
Deposit to Project Fund 3,098,500      298,500         1,000,000      175,000         140,000         300,000         625,000         - -
Deposit to Refunding Fund 600,000         - - - - - - 340,000         260,000         
Rounding Amount 3,840             2,981             1,696             54                  (3,847)            1,481             2,275             (4,481)            2,580             

Total Uses $3,230,000 $310,000 $1,030,000 $180,000 $140,000 $310,000 $645,000 $345,000 $270,000

Issue Summary

Interest Rates and Debt Service

Key Dates

Prepared for by Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 9/8/2017

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037

Exhibit 2: General Obligation Borrowing Capacity

G.O. Debt Outstanding G.O. Borrowing Capacity

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



For Discussion Only

City of Merrill, WI

Refunding Savings Analysis

Less: Less:
Principal Rate Interest Fund Net Debt Principal Rate Interest Fund Net Debt

12/1 6/1 & 12/1 Transfers Service 10/1 4/1 & 10/1 Transfers Service

2018 55,000           3.900% 24,920           79,920           65,000           1.30% 10,894           75,894           4,026             
2019 65,000           3.900% 22,775           87,775           75,000           1.40% 10,863           85,863           1,913             
2020 60,000           4.000% 20,240           80,240           60,000           1.60% 9,813             69,813           10,428           
2021 80,000           4.000% 17,840           97,840           80,000           1.70% 8,853             88,853           8,988             
2022 50,000           4.200% 14,640           64,640           50,000           1.90% 7,493             57,493           7,148             
2023 50,000           4.200% 12,540           62,540           50,000           2.00% 6,543             56,543           5,998             
2024 60,000           4.300% 10,440           70,440           60,000           2.15% 5,543             65,543           4,898             
2025 60,000           4.300% 7,860             67,860           60,000           2.30% 4,253             64,253           3,608             
2026 60,000           4.400% 5,280             65,280           60,000           2.45% 2,873             62,873           2,408             
2027 60,000           4.400% 2,640             62,640           55,000           2.55% 1,403             56,403           6,238                                  

Total 600,000         139,175         -                    739,175         615,000         68,527           -                    683,527         55,648           

Notes: Plus Rounding: (1,900)           

Total Cash Flow (Future Value) Savings: 53,748           
Present Value Savings of 8.57%: 52,745           

Sources Uses
Par Amount of Bonds: 615,000         Underwriter's Discount: 7,380             

Costs of Issuance: 9,520             
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund: 600,000         
Rounding Amount: (1,900)            

Total: 615,000         615,000         

Year

PRIOR TO THE REFUNDING FOLLOWING THE REFUNDING

DEBT 
SERVICE 
SAVINGS

Existing Debt Service (to be refunded) New Debt Service
$885,000 $3,230,000

General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2008B General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2017A
Dated:  1/03/2008 Dated:  10/26/2017

Prepared by Ehlers 9/8/2017

12.2.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
20

17
A

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
65

 :
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
ID

 3
 a

n
d

 4
)



 

 
 

 
September 12, 2017 

 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
 
$860,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 
2017B 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
 
Brian Reilly, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
 
And 
 
Sean Lentz, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
 
And 
 
Chris Hetland, 
Financial Specialist 

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 

Proposed Issue: $860,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017B 

Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing for the following purposes:  

Finance Capital Projects 

 Building. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 City Hall. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 Fire. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 IT. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 Library. Debt service will be paid from revenues. 

 Parks. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

 Streets. Debt service will be paid from tax levy. 

Authority:  The Notes are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statute(s): 

 67.12(12) 

The Notes will be general obligations of the City for which its full faith, credit and 
taxing powers are pledged. 

The Notes count against the City’s General Obligation Debt Capacity Limit of 5% of 
total City Equalized Valuation.  Following issuance of the Notes, the City’s total 
General Obligation debt principal outstanding will be $15,908,243, which is 79% of 
its limit.  Remaining General Obligation Borrowing Capacity will be approximately 
$4,209,567. 

Term/Call Feature: The Notes are being issued for a 10 year term.  Principal on the Notes will be due on 
October 1 in the years 2018 through 2027. Interest is payable every six months 
beginning October 1, 2018. 

The Notes maturing on and after October 1, 2025 will be subject to prepayment at 
the discretion of the City on October 1, 2024 or any date thereafter. 

Bank Qualification: Because the City is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax exempt debt 
during the calendar year, the City will be able to designate the Notes as “bank 
qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the market for the Notes, 
which can result in lower interest rates. 

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 2 

 

Rating: The City’s most recent bond issues were rated “A” by Standard & Poor’s.  The City 
will request a new rating for the Notes. 

If the winning bidder on the Notes elects to purchase bond insurance, the rating for 
the issue may be higher than the City’s bond rating in the event that the bond rating 
of the insurer is higher than that of the City. 

Basis for 
Recommendation: 

 Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, our 
advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal financing 
options, we are recommending the issuance of Notes as a suitable option based on: 

 The expectation this form of financing will provide the overall lowest cost 
of funds while also meeting the City’s objectives for term, structure and 
optional redemption. 

 The City having adequate General Obligation debt capacity to undertake 
this financing.  

 The nature of the projects being financed. 

 The existing General Obligation pledge securing the obligations to be 
refunded. 

Method of 
Sale/Placement: 

In order to obtain the lowest interest cost to the City, we will competitively bid the 
purchase of the Notes from local and national underwriters/banks. 
 
We have included an allowance for discount bidding equal to 1.20000% of the 
principal amount of the issue. The discount is treated as an interest item and provides 
the underwriter with all or a portion of their compensation in the transaction.  
 
If the Notes are purchased at a price greater than the minimum bid amount (maximum 
discount), the unused allowance may be used to lower your borrowing amount. 
 
Premium Bids:  Under current market conditions, most investors in municipal notes 
prefer “premium” pricing structures.  A premium is achieved when the coupon for 
any maturity (the interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, 
resulting in a price paid that is greater than the face value of the notes.  The sum of 
the amounts paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.”  
The amount of the premium varies, but it is not uncommon to see premiums for new 
issues in the range of 2.00% to 10.00% of the face amount of the issue.  This means 
that an issuer with a $2,000,000 offering may receive bids that result in proceeds of 
$2,040,000 to $2,200,000. 
 
For this issue of Notes, any premium amount received that is in excess of the 
underwriting discount and any capitalized interest amounts must be placed in the debt 
service fund and used to pay a portion of the interest payments due on the Notes. 
 

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 3 

 

The amount of premium allowed can be restricted in the bid 
specifications.  Restrictions on premium may result in fewer bids, but may also 
eliminate large adjustments on the day of sale and unintended results with respect to 
debt service payment impacts.  Ehlers will identify appropriate premium restrictions 
for the Notes intended to achieve the City’s objectives for this financing. 
 

Other Considerations: The Notes will be offered with the option of the successful bidder utilizing a term 
bond structure.  By offering underwriters the option to “term up” some of the 
maturities at the time of the sale, it gives them more flexibility in finding a market 
for your Notes.   This makes your issue more marketable, which can result in lower 
borrowing costs.  In the event that the successful bidder utilizes a term bond structure, 
we recommend the City retain a paying agent to handle responsibility for processing 
mandatory redemption/call notices associated with term bonds. 

Review of Existing 
Debt: 

We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the City and find that there are no 
refunding opportunities at this time. 

We will continue to monitor the market and the call dates for the City’s outstanding 
debt and will alert you to any future refunding opportunities. 

Continuing 
Disclosure: 

Because the City has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this issue) 
and this issue is over $1,000,000, the City will be agreeing to provide certain updated 
Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statement annually as well 
as providing notices of the occurrence of certain reportable events to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), as required by rules of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC).  The City is already obligated to provide such 
reports for its existing notes, and has contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the 
reports.   

Arbitrage Monitoring: 
 

Because the Notes are tax-exempt obligations/tax credit obligations, the City must 
ensure compliance with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the 
life of the issue.  These rules apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial 
note proceeds and investment earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, and any 
reserve funds.  How issuers spend note proceeds and how they track interest earnings 
on funds (arbitrage/yield restriction compliance) are common subjects of IRS 
inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be detailed in the Tax Exemption 
Certificate prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing.  We recommend 
that you regularly monitor compliance with these rules and/or retain the services of a 
qualified firm to assist you. We also recommend that you establish written procedures 
regarding compliance with IRS rules. 

Other Service 
Providers: 

This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 
coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used a 
particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue that 
relationship.  For services you have not previously required, we have identified a 

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 4 

 

service provider.  Fees charged by these service providers will be paid from proceeds 
of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay them from other 
sources.  Our pre-sale note sizing includes a good faith estimate of these fees, so their 
final fees may vary.  If you have any questions pertaining to the identified service 
providers or their role, or if you would like to use a different service provider for any 
of the listed services please contact us. 

Bond Attorney: Quarles & Brady LLP 

Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services Corporation 

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's Global Ratings (S&P)  

 
This presale report summarizes our understanding of the City’s objectives for the structure and terms of this 
financing as of this date.  As additional facts become known or capital markets conditions change, we may need 
to modify the structure and/or terms of this financing to achieve results consistent with the City’s objectives. 
  

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



 

 
  

Presale Report  
City of Merrill, Wisconsin 

September 12, 2017 
Page 5 

 

Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 
 

Pre-Sale Review by Common Council: September 12, 2017 

Distribute Official Statement: Week of September 25, 2017 

Conference with Rating Agency: Week of October 2, 2017 

Common Council Meeting to Award Sale of the Notes: October 10, 2017 

Estimated Closing Date: October 26, 2017  

 

Attachments 
Sources and Uses of Funds and Proposed Debt Service Schedule 

 
 

Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: Brian Reilly (651) 697-8541 

 Sean Lentz (651) 697-8509 

 Chris Hetland (651) 697-8582 

Disclosure Coordinator: Charissa Brookley (651) 697-8573 

Financial Analyst: Beth Mueller (651) 697-8553 
 
 
The Official Statement for this financing will be mailed to the Common Council at their home address or e-mailed 
for review prior to the sale date. 

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



Exhibit 1 Preliminary - For Discussion Only

City of Merrill, WI

Estimated Debt Service and Capitalization Schedule

$860,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017A

Year Principal Rate Interest Total P&I Fire Parks Library Debt Levy IT City Hall Building
2017
2018 70,000           1.30% 15,938 85,938           12,501           6,019             621                29,841           6,521             12,033           18,401           
2019 70,000           1.40% 16,218 86,218           12,558           6,030             668                29,878           6,570             12,055           18,460           
2020 70,000           1.60% 15,238 85,238           12,418           5,960             668                29,528           6,500             11,915           18,250           
2021 80,000           1.70% 14,118 94,118           17,258           5,880             668                29,128           6,420             11,755           23,010           
2022 90,000           1.90% 12,758 102,758         17,003           5,795             5,668             28,703           11,335           11,585           22,670           
2023 90,000           2.00% 11,048 101,048         16,718           5,700             5,573             28,228           11,145           11,395           22,290           
2024 90,000           2.15% 9,248 99,248           16,418           5,600             5,473             27,728           10,945           11,195           21,890           
2025 95,000           2.30% 7,313 102,313         16,095           5,493             5,365             32,190           10,730           10,980           21,460           
2026 100,000         2.45% 5,128 105,128         15,750           5,378             5,250             31,500           10,500           15,750           21,000           
2027 105,000         2.55% 2,678 107,678         15,383           10,255           5,128             30,765           10,255           15,383           20,510           

Totals 860,000         109,681         969,681         152,098         62,109           35,079           297,486         90,921           124,046         207,941         

Dated Date: 10/26/2017
First Interest Payment: 10/1/2018
First Principal Payment: 10/1/2018

PreSale
True Interest Cost (TIC): 2.40%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC): 3.26%

Sources and Uses

Total Fire Parks Library Debt Levy IT City Hall Building

Par Amount of Notes 860,000         135,000         55,000           30,000           265,000         80,000           110,000         185,000         

Total Sources $860,000 $135,000 $55,000 $30,000 $265,000 $80,000 $110,000 $185,000

Underwriters Discount 10,320           1,620             660                360                3,180             960                1,320             2,220             
Cost of Issuance 38,000           5,965             2,430             1,326             11,709           3,535             4,860             8,174             
Deposit to Project Fund 811,500         125,000         50,000           30,000           248,500         75,000           105,000         178,000         
Rounding Amount 180                2,415             1,910             (1,686)            1,611             505                (1,180)            (3,394)            

Total Uses $860,000 $135,000 $55,000 $30,000 $265,000 $80,000 $110,000 $185,000

Issue Summary

Key Dates

Estimated Costs of Funds Calculations

Prepared by Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 9/8/2017

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037

Exhibit 2: General Obligation Borrowing Capacity

G.O. Debt Outstanding G.O. Borrowing Capacity

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



For Discussion Only

Prepared by Ehlers 9/8/2017

3.74 3.78

3.69
3.47

3.50
3.45

3.43

2.97
2.98

2.92

1.90
1.54 1.54

1.55
1.38

1.36

1.37

0.64

0.62 0.65

0.23

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037

Exhibit 3: Projected Tax Levy for Debt Service ‐ Adjusted for Proposed 2017 Issues

General Fund Debt Service Mill Rate for Debt Service

12.2.c

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
S

al
eR

ep
o

rt
 M

er
ri

ll 
N

o
te

s 
20

17
B

  (
27

65
 :

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
T

ID
 3

 a
n

d
 4

)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

M
in

u
te

s 
fo

r 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
7 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

(2
76

4 
: 

F
ili

n
g

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
o

rt
s)



From: Bialecki, Bill
To: Heideman, Bill
Subject: mayor"s appointments
Date: Tuesday, September 05, 2017 2:45:51 PM

Bill,

Please put the following appointments on the Sept.12th Council Agenda.
 
Thanks,
Bill B.
 
Redevelopment Authority
Sheila Polak     ends 9/1/22
 
Park and Recreation
Joan Tabor    ends 5/1/22
 
Airport Commission
Lyle Banser    ends 10/1/23
 
Police and Fire Commission
 
 
 
 
Waiting to hear on Police and Fire will let you know if the person responds by Thurs. noon
 
 

14.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
o

r'
s 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
ts

  (
27

48
 :

 A
p

p
o

in
t 

S
h

ei
la

 P
o

la
k 

to
 R

D
A

)

mailto:/O=MERRILL-EXCH/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BIALECKI, BILL
mailto:Bill.Heideman@ci.merrill.wi.us


 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING MERRILL AREA HOUSING AUTHORITY 

REQUEST TO CONTINUE AND ADJUST PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES AND 
SUPPORT OF RENOVATION PROGRAM  

 
WHEREAS, there exists a program entitled Section 42 Low Income 

Housing Tax Credits which is administered in the State of Wisconsin by the 
Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority (“WHEDA”) whose 
purpose is to provide development of rental units for low income households, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Merrill Area Housing Authority is renovating and 

redeveloping 102 units of affordable housing currently known as Park Place 
Apartments and Westgate Apartments in connection with an allocation of Section 
42 Low Income Housing Tax Credits it has received from WHEDA and has 
requested the City of Merrill to support the renovation and redevelopment of Park 
Place Apartments and Westgate Apartments, and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council finds that the redevelopment of affordable rental 

housing within the City will be beneficial to the City of Merrill and its residents, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with WHEDA’s allocation of tax credits and the 

redevelopment, Merrill Area Housing Authority will transfer federal income tax 
ownership of Park Place Apartments and Westgate Apartments to the entity 
formed to receive the tax credits from WHEDA, Park Place & Westgate, LLC (the 
“LLC”), by leasing the land, buildings and other improvements constituting the 
apartment projects to the LLC pursuant to a capital lease, and 

 
WHEREAS Merrill Area Housing Authority is the sole member of the 

managing member of the LLC and the property manager of the apartment 
projects, with the exception of compliance associated with the Section 42 Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits, and as such, notwithstanding the transfers of 
ownership of the improvements to the LLC as described above, continues to 
exercise exclusive control and authority over the operation of the apartment 
projects, and 

 
WHEREAS upon completion of the redevelopment, the project will consist 

of 54 units of affordable housing known as Park Place Apartments, 38 units of 

16.1.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 M
er

ri
ll 

A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 P

IL
O

T
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



affordable housing known as Stonebridge Apartments and 10 units of affordable 
housing known as Westgate Apartments, and 

 
WHEREAS, the current payment in lieu of taxes for Park Place 

Apartments PILOT is now shelter rent less utilities x 10% will remain the same, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the payment in lieu of taxes for Westgate Apartments PILOT 

is now shelter rent less utilities x 10% and will remain the same, and 

 
WHEREAS, the payment in lieu of taxes for Stonebridge Apartments 

PILOT is proposed to be shelter rent less utilities x 10%.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COMMON COUNCIL, 

OF THE CITY OF MERRILL this 12th day of September, 2017, that it supports 
the Merrill Area Housing Authority’s allocation of tax credits and hereby 
authorizes the Mayor to execute all documents necessary to accomplish those 
purposes, including the PILOT Agreement in the form of Exhibit A attached 
hereto.  

 

Recommended by:  
 
 
Moved:  

 
Passed:  

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 

16.1.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 M
er

ri
ll 

A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 P

IL
O

T
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



4814-9941-2811.3 

PILOT AGREEMENT 

This PILOT Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into effective _____, 2017, by and 
among the City of Merrill, Wisconsin (the “City”), Park Place & Westgate, LLC, a Wisconsin 
limited liability company (the “Company”) and Merrill Area Housing Authority, a public body, 
corporate and politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin (the “Housing 
Authority”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has approval from the Department of  Housing 
and Urban Development to own and operate 102 units of subsidized housing to be located at 215 
Grand Avenue, 1705 – 1707 - 1709 Water Street and 307 West Main Street, Merrill, Wisconsin 
54452 (referred to herein as the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has received an allocation of Federal Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits for the rehabilitation and redevelopment of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, in order to raise debt and equity capital for the substantial rehabilitation, 
construction and redevelopment of the Project, the Housing Authority anticipates transferring federal 
income tax ownership of the Project to the Company by leasing the entire Project to the Company in 
2017 pursuant to a capital lease (such lease to include the land described on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof); and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority is the sole member of the managing member of 
the Company and the property manager of the Project (with the exception of compliance associated 
with the Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits), and, as such, exercises exclusive control and 
authority over the operation of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has loaned substantial sums to the Company in 
connection with the acquisition and rehabilitation/construction of the Project, and has a right of first 
refusal to acquire the Project for a nominal sum following expiration of the fifteen (15)-year low-
income housing tax period (the “Compliance Period”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company is obligated to operate the Project as affordable housing in 
compliance with HUD and Internal Revenue Code restrictions and requirements, and the Housing 
Authority is solely responsible for ensuring that such restrictions and requirements are satisfied by 
the Company throughout the Compliance Period; and 

WHEREAS, the Company will not generate material positive cash flow in excess of 
its fixed expenses, fees and debt obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have determined, based upon the foregoing RECITALS, that 
the Project constitutes property of the Housing Authority that is exempt from taxation under Section 
70.11(18) of the Wisconsin Statutes and which may be subject to a payment in lieu of taxes 
(“PILOT”) imposed by the City, as provided in Section 66.1201(22) of the Wisconsin Statues; 

NOW, THEREFORE, acknowledging the receipt of sufficient consideration, the 
parties agree as follows: 

16.1.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
-W

es
tg

at
e 

P
IL

O
T

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
27

63
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

IL
O

T
 f

o
r 

M
er

rr
ill

 A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



2 
4814-9941-2811.3 

1. Term of PILOT Agreement.  The Company shall make a PILOT to the City 
with respect to the Project for each calendar year beginning in 2018 and ending in the final calendar 
year of the Project’s Compliance Period, now estimated to be calendar year 2034.  As required by 
Section 66.1201(22) of the Wisconsin Statutes, such PILOT shall not exceed the amount that would 
be levied as the annual tax of the City upon the Project. 

2. Computation of PILOT.  The PILOT for each calendar year shall be ten 
percent (10%) of the difference between (a) one hundred percent (100%) of the tenant’s portion of 
the collected rents for all of the residential rental units in the Project for such calendar year; and (b) 
one hundred percent (100%) of the electricity, water, sewer and fuel bills incurred by the Company 
with respect to the Project for such calendar year.  The amounts under clauses (a) and (b) above shall 
be based upon the financial statements of the Company for the prior calendar year.  

3. Payment of PILOT.  The Company shall make the PILOT within the time 
periods applicable to properties that are not exempt from property taxation, as provided in Section 
74.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

4. Obligation of Company and Housing Authority.  The Housing Authority shall 
cause the Company to rehabilitate and operate the Project as affordable rental housing throughout the 
Compliance Period in accordance with the income, rent and other restrictions and limitations 
imposed by HUD and the Internal Revenue Code. 

5. Obligations of City.  The City shall furnish or cause to be furnished to the 
Company and/or Project tenants such services or facilities as are furnished to other property owners 
and residents of the City on the same basis as such City services are ordinarily provided.  The City 
shall also, to the extent permitted by applicable law, apply or modify existing City codes and 
ordinances to permit the Housing Authority and the Company to operate the Project as described 
above throughout the Compliance Period. 

6. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement cannot be unilaterally amended, modified or 
terminated by any party hereto.  Each party hereby represents to and for the benefit of the other party 
that the person executing this Agreement on the signature page on behalf of such party has been duly 
authorized to execute this Agreement, and that this Agreement has been duly authorized and 
approved by such party.  The benefits of this Agreement shall not be assigned by the Company or the 
Housing Authority without City’s consent.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Wisconsin.  This Agreement may be signed by facsimile or in counterparts. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
 

16.1.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
-W

es
tg

at
e 

P
IL

O
T

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
27

63
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

IL
O

T
 f

o
r 

M
er

rr
ill

 A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



Signature page to Park Place & Westgate, LLC PILOT Agreement 
4814-9941-2811.3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto duly execute this PILOT Agreement 
effective as of the date first set forth above. 

CITY OF MERRILL 

By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  William R. Bialecki  
Its:        Mayor 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  William N. Heideman 
Its:        City Clerk 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  Thomas N. Hayden 
Its:        City Attorney 
 
 
MERRILL AREA HOUSING AUTHORITY, 
a public body, corporate and politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  Paul Russell, Executive Director 
 
 
PARK PLACE & WESTGATE, LLC, 
a Wisconsin limited liability company 
By:  Park Place and Westgate MM, LLC 
Its: Managing Member  
By:  Merrill Area Housing Authority, 
a public body, corporate and politic, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin 
Its:  Sole Member 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  Paul Russell, Executive Director

16.1.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
-W

es
tg

at
e 

P
IL

O
T

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
27

63
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

IL
O

T
 f

o
r 

M
er

rr
ill

 A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



A-1  
4814-9941-2811.3 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PROJECT 

 
102 apartment units located at ________, Merrill, Wisconsin  544492 more particularly described as: 
 
 

16.1.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
k 

P
la

ce
-W

es
tg

at
e 

P
IL

O
T

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
27

63
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

IL
O

T
 f

o
r 

M
er

rr
ill

 A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



16.1.c

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

M
em

o
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.c

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

M
em

o
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.c

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

M
em

o
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.c

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

M
em

o
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.c

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

M
em

o
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



16.1.d

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-L

eg
al

 A
n

al
ys

is
  (

27
63

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
IL

O
T

 f
o

r 
M

er
rr

ill
 A

re
a 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



Park Place & Westgate, LLC

Estimate of Annual Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Westgate Park Place Stone Bridge Total

Avg dwelling rental 195.00$          288.00$          288.00$          

No of units 10                     54                     38                     102                  

Avg monthly rental 1,950.00$       15,552.00$     10,944.00$     28,446.00$     

No of months 12                     12                     12                     12                     

Estimated dwelling rental 23,400.00$     186,624.00$  131,328.00$  341,352.00$  

Estimated vacancy rate 3% 3% 3% 3%

Estimated net dwelling rental 22,698.00$     181,025.00$  127,388.00$  331,111.00$  

Escess utilities 98.00               529.00             373.00             1,000.00         

Non dwelling rental 118.00             635.00             447.00             1,200.00         

Total rental or homebuyers 

payments charged 22,914.00$     182,189.00$  128,208.00$  333,311.00$  

Total utilities expense 1,351.00         53,524.00       37,665.00       92,540.00       

Shelter rent charged 21,563.00$     128,665.00$  90,543.00$     240,771.00$  

PILOT % 10% 10% 10% 10%

Estimated PILOT 2,156$             12,867$          9,054$             24,077$          

This is an estimate only based on current occupancy of the Westgate and Park Place properties.  Actual results will differ

16.1.e

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

IL
O

T
-P

ro
je

ct
ed

 F
is

ca
l  

(2
76

3 
: 

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

IL
O

T
 f

o
r 

M
er

rr
ill

 A
re

a 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP ON HIGHWAY 
COUNTY ROAD “G” AND US HIGHWAY “51” IN THE TOWN OF MERRILL 

BY G&M PETERSON LLC AND THE CITY OF MERRILL 
 

WHEREAS, G & M Peterson, LLC and the City of Merrill have applied for 
approval of a division of land by certified survey map pursuant to Code of 
Ordinances Sections 111-116 and 111-119 for land located in part of the NW ¼ 
of the SW ¼and part of the SW ¼ of the SW 1/4 of Section 5, part of the NE ¼ of 
the SE ¼ and part of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 6, Township 31 North, 
Range 7 East, Town of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin; and, 

WHEREAS, the application was referred to the City Plan Commission 
which considered the proposed division at a meeting on September 5, 2017; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has recommended approval of the 
land division by certified survey map; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the 
proposed certified survey map presented by G & M Peterson, LLC and the City of 
Merrill and prepared by Riverside Land Surveying, LLC  , involving part of the 
NW ¼ of the SW ¼and part of the SW ¼ of the SW 1/4 of Section 5, part of the 
NE ¼ of the SE ¼ and part of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 6, Township 31 
North, Range 7 East, Town of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin is hereby 
approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to so certify 
the approval of this certified survey map and return the original to the applicant 
together with a certified copy of this resolution.    

 

Recommended by: City Plan 
Commission 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 

16.2.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
S

M
 in

 T
o

w
n

 o
f 

M
er

ri
ll 

 (
27

37
 :

 E
xt

ra
te

rr
it

o
ri

al
 C

S
M

 in
 t

h
e 

T
o

w
n

 o
f 

M
er

ri
ll)



16.2.b

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

S
M

 in
 T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll 
 (

27
37

 :
 E

xt
ra

te
rr

it
o

ri
al

 C
S

M
 in

 t
h

e 
T

o
w

n
 o

f 
M

er
ri

ll)



16.3.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 T

ID
4-

H
w

y 
G

 L
an

d
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
 (

27
51

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 la
n

d
 p

u
rc

h
as

e 
fo

r 
in

d
u

st
ri

al
 p

ar
k)



QB\48062677.1  

Resolution No. _____ 
 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $310,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, 
WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, 
borrow an amount not to exceed $310,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds for the public 
purpose of financing street improvement projects. 

 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.4.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

1 
- 

S
tr

ee
t 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
  (

27
66

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 $
31

0,
00

0 
in

 G
O

 B
o

n
d

s)



QB\48062725.1  

Resolution No. _____ 
 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $1,030,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS FOR  FIRE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, 
WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, 
borrow an amount not to exceed $1,030,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds for the public 
purpose of financing the acquisition of equipment for fire protection. 

 

Recommended by: The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.5.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

2 
- 

F
ir

e 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

 (
27

67
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

zi
n

g
 $

1.
03

0,
00

0 
G

O
 B

o
n

d
s 

fo
r 

F
D

 e
q

u
ip

m
en

t)



QB\48062561.1  

Resolution No. ____ 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
$1,275,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
IN TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NOS. 7, 8, 9 AND 11  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, 
WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, 
Wisconsin, borrow an amount not to exceed $1,275,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds 
for the public purpose of providing financial assistance to community development projects 
under Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats., by paying project costs included in the project plans for the 
City's Tax Incremental District Nos. 7, 8, 9, and 11. 

 
Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

 

16.6.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

3 
- 

C
D

-T
ID

 B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
68

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 $
1,

27
5,

00
0 

G
O

 B
o

n
d

s 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
s)



QB\48063425.1  

Resolution No. _____ 
 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
$615,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, 
WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, 
borrow an amount not to exceed $615,000 by issuing its general obligation refunding bonds for the 
public purpose of refunding obligations of the City, including interest on them. 

 
Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.7.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

4 
- 

G
O

 R
ef

u
n

d
in

g
  (

27
69

 :
 In

it
ia

l R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

zi
n

g
 $

61
5.

00
0 

G
O

 R
ef

u
n

d
in

g
 B

o
n

d
s)



QB\48063305.1  

Resolution No. _____ 

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE TO ELECTORS 

WHEREAS, initial resolutions authorizing general obligation bonds have been adopted by the 
Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin and it is now necessary that said initial resolutions 
be published to afford notice to the residents of the City of their adoption; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that the City Clerk shall, within 15 days, 
publish a notice to the electors in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A in the official 
newspaper of the City, the Merrill Courier, as a class 1 notice under Ch. 985, Wis. Stats. 

 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.8.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

5 
- 

N
o

ti
ce

 t
o

 E
le

ct
o

rs
  (

27
70

 :
 A

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 d

ir
ec

ti
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
at

io
n

 o
f 

n
o

ti
ce

 t
o

 e
le

ct
o

rs
)



QB\48062759.1  

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE TO ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following initial resolutions have been adopted at the 
meeting of the Common Council of the City of Merrill held September 12, 2017: 

Resolution No. ____ 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
$310,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

RESOLVED that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, borrow an amount not to 
exceed $310,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds for the public purpose of financing 
street improvement projects. 

Resolution No. ____ 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
$1,030,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT 

RESOLVED that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, borrow an amount not to 
exceed $1,030,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds for the public purpose of financing 
the acquisition of equipment for fire protection. 

Resolution No. ____ 

AN INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
$1,275,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
IN TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NOS. 7, 8, 9 and 11  

RESOLVED that the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, borrow an amount not to 
exceed $1,275,000 by issuing its general obligation bonds for the public purpose of providing 
financial assistance to community development projects under Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats., by 
paying project costs included in the project plans for the City's Tax Incremental District Nos. 
7, 8, 9 and 11. 

The Wisconsin Statutes (s. 67.05(7)(b)) provide that the initial resolutions need not be 
submitted to the electors unless within 30 days after adoption of the initial resolutions a petition is 
filed in the City Clerk's office requesting a referendum.  This petition must be signed by electors 
numbering at least 10% of the votes cast for governor in the City at the last general election.  A 
petition may be filed with respect to any one or more of the initial resolutions. 

 
City of Merrill 

City Clerk 

16.8.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

5 
- 

N
o

ti
ce

 t
o

 E
le

ct
o

rs
  (

27
70

 :
 A

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 d

ir
ec

ti
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
at

io
n

 o
f 

n
o

ti
ce

 t
o

 e
le

ct
o

rs
)



QB\48063349.1  

Resolution No. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$3,230,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS 

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City") 
has adopted initial resolutions authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds for the following public 
purposes and in the following amounts: 

$310,000 to finance street improvement projects; 

$1,030,000 to finance acquisition of equipment for fire protection;  

$1,275,000 to finance community development projects in the City's Tax Incremental Districts; and 

$615,000 to refund obligations of the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that: 

Section 1.  Combination of Issues.  The issues referred to in the preamble hereof are hereby 
combined into one issue of bonds designated "General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds" (the 
"Bonds") and the City shall issue Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,230,000 for the purposes above 
specified. 

Section 2.  Sale of Bonds.  The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the Bonds be 
offered for public sale.  At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider such bids for the 
Bonds as may have been received and take action thereon. 

Section 3.  Notice of Bond Sale.  The City Clerk be and hereby is directed to cause notice of the 
sale of the Bonds to be disseminated at such times and in such manner as the City Clerk may determine 
and to cause copies of a complete, official Notice of Bond Sale and other pertinent data to be forwarded to 
interested bidders as the City Clerk may determine. 

Section 4.  Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall cause an Official Statement concerning the 
Bonds to be prepared by Ehlers & Associates, Inc.  The appropriate City officials shall determine when the 
Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 and shall 
certify said Statement, such certification to constitute full authorization of such Statement under this 
resolution. 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.9.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

6 
- 

B
o

n
d

s 
 (

27
71

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
sa

le
 o

f 
$3

,2
30

,0
00

 G
O

 B
o

n
d

s)



QB\48063969.1  

Resolution No. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF 
$860,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently in need 
of approximately $860,000 for public purposes, including, among other capital projects, paying the 
costs of acquiring equipment, constructing improvements to the Enrichment Center, park 
improvements, library improvements, street improvements, IT projects and City Hall improvements; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to borrow said funds through the issuance of general obligation 
promissory notes pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wis. Stats.;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of September, 2017, that: 

Section 1.  Sale of Notes.  The City shall issue its General Obligation Promissory Notes in an 
approximate amount of $860,000 (the "Notes") for the purposes above specified.   

Section 2.  Sale of Notes.  The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the Notes 
be offered for public sale.  At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider such bids for 
the Notes as may have been received and take action thereon. 

Section 3.  Notice of Note Sale.  The City Clerk be and hereby is directed to cause notice of 
the sale of the Notes to be disseminated at such times and in such manner as the City Clerk may 
determine and to cause copies of a complete, official Notice of Note Sale and other pertinent data to 
be forwarded to interested bidders as the City Clerk may determine. 

Section 4.  Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall cause an Official Statement concerning 
the Notes to be prepared by Ehlers & Associates, Inc.  The appropriate City officials shall determine 
when the Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
15c2-12 and shall certify said Statement, such certification to constitute full authorization of such 
Statement under this resolution. 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

16.10.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

7 
- 

N
o

te
s 

 (
27

72
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

sa
le

 o
f 

$8
60

,0
00

 G
O

 P
ro

m
is

so
ry

 N
o

te
s)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 2746 : Minutes of August 8, 2017 meeting and August 23, 2017 meeting
	a. 2017-08-08 Council Minutes
	b. 2017-08-23 Special Council Minutes


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 2694 : Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending August 31, 2017
	a. Revenue & Expense Report


	8. Communications and Petitions:
	1. 2697 : Stiver claim
	a. Letter of Stiver Claim Disallowance recommendation from insurance

	2. 2759 : Petition for Direct Annexation
	a. Petition for Direct Annexation - Town of Merrill (Peterson Property)
	b. Annexation-LC Highway G


	9. General agenda items:
	1. 2695 : Employee Years of Service Recognition
	2696 : Tom Hayden recognition

	10. Board of Public Works:
	1. 2723 : Street Use Permit - The Haunted Sawmill
	a. Street Use Permit - Haunted Sawmill

	2. 2761 : Bid for 2017 Paving Project II
	a. City Engineer request for agenda items - 2 bids

	3. 2762 : Bids for River Bend Trail Paving project

	11. Health and Safety Committee:
	1. 2730 : Merrill Hotel Group - Class B Beer & Liquor License
	a. Liquor License - Badger Hotel

	2. 2731 : Request from Don Boquist for liquor license refund
	a. Request by Don Boquist - License Refund

	3. 2747 : Picnic license for St. Francis Fall Festival
	a. St Francis Picnic License Oct 8 2017


	12. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 2732 : Assessment Contract
	a. Assessment Contract-2018-2020

	2. 2765 : Borrowing Plan for TID 3 and 4
	a. TID Revenue Notes-TID3 and TID4
	b. PreSaleReport Merrill 2017A Bonds
	c. PreSaleReport Merrill Notes 2017B


	13. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 2764 : Filing committee reports
	a. Committee Minutes for September 2017 Council


	14. Mayor's Appointments:
	2748 : Appoint Sheila Polak to RDA
	a. Mayor's Appointments

	2749 : Appoint Joan Tabor to Park and Rec
	2750 : Appoint Lyle Banser to Airport Commission
	2758 : Appoint Nicole Johnson to Police and Fire

	15. Ordinances: 
	2773 : None

	16. Resolutions:
	1. 2763 : Resolution on PILOT for Merrrill Area Housing Authority
	a. Resolution on Merrill Area Housing Authority PILOT
	b. Park Place-Westgate PILOT Agreement
	c. PILOT-Finance Director Memo
	d. PILOT-Legal Analysis
	e. PILOT-Projected Fiscal

	2. 2737 : Extraterritorial CSM in the Town of Merrill
	a. Resolution on CSM in Town of Merrill
	b. CSM in Town of Merrill

	3. 2751 : Resolution on land purchase for industrial park
	a. Res TID4-Hwy G Land Purchase

	4. 2766 : Resolution Authorizing $310,000 in GO Bonds
	a. Res Borrowing1 - Street Improvements

	5. 2767 : Resolution authorizing $1.030,000 GO Bonds for FD equipment
	a. Res Borrowing2 - Fire Equipment

	6. 2768 : Resolution authorizing $1,275,000 GO Bonds for Community Development Projects
	a. Res Borrowing3 - CD-TID Bonds

	7. 2769 : Initial Resolution authorizing $615.000 GO Refunding Bonds
	a. Res Borrowing4 - GO Refunding

	8. 2770 : A Resolution directing publication of notice to electors
	a. Res Borrowing5 - Notice to Electors

	9. 2771 : Resolution providing for sale of $3,230,000 GO Bonds
	a. Res Borrowing6 - Bonds

	10. 2772 : Resolution providing for sale of $860,000 GO Promissory Notes
	a. Res Borrowing7 - Notes


	17. Mayor's Communications
	18. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · 2017-08-08 Council Minutes
	6.1.b · 2017-08-23 Special Council Minutes
	7.1.a · Revenue & Expense Report
	8.1.a · Letter of Stiver Claim Disallowance recommendation from insurance
	8.2.a · Petition for Direct Annexation - Town of Merrill (Peterson Property)
	8.2.b · Annexation-LC Highway G
	10.1.a · Street Use Permit - Haunted Sawmill
	10.2.a · City Engineer request for agenda items - 2 bids
	11.1.a · Liquor License - Badger Hotel
	11.2.a · Request by Don Boquist - License Refund
	11.3.a · St Francis Picnic License Oct 8 2017
	12.1.a · Assessment Contract-2018-2020
	12.2.a · TID Revenue Notes-TID3 and TID4
	12.2.b · PreSaleReport Merrill 2017A Bonds
	12.2.c · PreSaleReport Merrill Notes 2017B
	13.1.a · Committee Minutes for September 2017 Council
	14.a · Mayor's Appointments
	16.1.a · Resolution on Merrill Area Housing Authority PILOT
	16.1.b · Park Place-Westgate PILOT Agreement
	16.1.c · PILOT-Finance Director Memo
	16.1.d · PILOT-Legal Analysis
	16.1.e · PILOT-Projected Fiscal
	16.2.a · Resolution on CSM in Town of Merrill
	16.2.b · CSM in Town of Merrill
	16.3.a · Res TID4-Hwy G Land Purchase
	16.4.a · Res Borrowing1 - Street Improvements
	16.5.a · Res Borrowing2 - Fire Equipment
	16.6.a · Res Borrowing3 - CD-TID Bonds
	16.7.a · Res Borrowing4 - GO Refunding
	16.8.a · Res Borrowing5 - Notice to Electors
	16.9.a · Res Borrowing6 - Bonds
	16.10.a · Res Borrowing7 - Notes


